
Resources Directorate
DavidDavid  WilcockWilcock
AssistantAssistant  DirectorDirector  (Legal,(Legal,  GovernanceGovernance  &&  
Workforce)Workforce)

Governance  & Committee Services
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street,
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

Phone: 01706 647474
Website: www.rochdale.gov.uk

To:  All Members of the Pennines Township 
Committee

Enquiries to: Shahada Shahid
Email:              shahada.shahid@rochdale.gov.uk 
Telephone: 01706 924713
Date: 21st December 2016

Dear Councillor

Pennines Township Committee

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Pennines Township Committee to 
be held in Hollingworth B, Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number 
One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU on Tuesday, 10th January 
2017 commencing at 6.15 pm.

The agenda and supporting papers are attached. 

If you require advice on any agenda item involving a possible Declaration of 
Interest which could affect your right to speak and/or vote, please refer to the 
Code of Conduct or contact the Monitoring Officer or staff in the Governance and 
Committee Services Team at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Yours Faithfully

David Wilcock
Assistant Director (Legal, Governance & Workforce)

Pennines Township Committee Membership 2016/17
Councillor John Blundell (Chair)
Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Robert Clegg
Councillor Ashley Dearnley
Councillor Janet Emsley
Councillor Irene Davidson
Councillor John Hartley
Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Andy Kelly
Councillor Amna Mir
Councillor Rina Paolucci-Escobar (Vice Chair)
Councillor Ann Stott JP

Public Document Pack

mailto:shahada.shahid@rochdale.gov.uk


Rochdale Borough Council

PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 10th January 2017 at 6.15 pm

Hollingworth B, Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, Number One 
Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU

A G E N D A

Apologies for Absence
1.  Declarations of Interest 3 - 5

Members must indicate at this stage any items on the agenda in 
which they must declare an interest.  Members must verbally give 
notice of their interest at the meeting and complete the form attached 
with this agenda.  

Members are also advised to take advice with regard to any matter 
where there is potential bias or predetermination in any business to 
be considered at the meeting and whether they should take part in 
decision making at the meeting.

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the Localism Act 
2011 and the Council's adopted Code of Conduct, they must declare 
the nature of any discloseable pecuniary interest; personal interest 
and/or prejudicial interest required of them and, in the case of any 
discloseable pecuniary interest or prejudicial interest, withdraw from 
the meeting during consideration of the item, unless permitted 
otherwise within the Code of Conduct.

2.  Open Forum 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise 
any issues relevant to the business of the Committee and the 
Township - incorporating a Police update. 

3.  Minutes of the Meeting of the Pennines Township Committee 
held on 29th November 2016 

6 - 11

4.  Smithy Bridge Road and Eafield Road, Littleborough - Objection 
to Traffic Regulation Order 

12 - 26



P
age 3

A
genda Item

 1



DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED BY THE COUNCIL ON 25TH JULY 2012, MEMBERS ARE REQUIRED TO DECLARE DISCLOSABLE 
PECUNIARY INTERESTS, PERSONAL INTERESTS AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS (LISTED ON THEIR REGISTER OF INTERESTS).

MEMBERS SHOULD REFER TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND/OR THE MONITORING OFFICER AND/OR THEIR DECLARATION FOR FURTHER GUIDANCE

MEETING AND DATE

…………………………….

Agenda item

Indicate either
 Discloseable Pecuniary Interest OR
 Personal Interest OR
 Personal and Prejudicial interest

Nature of Interest

Signed…………………………………………………………………………………………        Please print name…………………………………………………………………………………………..

IF A MEMBER HAS A DISCLOSEABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST THAT HAS NOT BEEN INCLUDED ON THEIR REGISTER SUBMISSION, THEY ARE REQUIRED BY 
LAW TO UPDATE THEIR REGISTER ENTRY WITHIN 28 DAYS.  FAILURE TO PROVIDE PROPER NOTIFICATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE.

THIS FORM, INCLUDING ‘NIL’ ENTRIES, MUST BE GIVEN TO THE GOVERNANCE AND COMMITTEE OFFICER NO LATER THAN AT THE END OF THE MEETING

P
age 4



Summary of discloseable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests.

Disclosable pecuniary interests
A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of your 
partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in the table below.  "Partner" means a spouse or civil 
partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are 
living as if you are civil partners.

Subject Description
Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit 
or gain

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the 
Council) made or provided within the 12 month period prior to notification 
of the interest in respect of any expenses incurred by you in carrying out 
duties as a member, or towards your election expenses.  

Contracts Any contract made between you or your partner (or a body in which you or 
your partner has a beneficial interest) and the Council - 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed: and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Rochdale 
Metropolitan Borough Council.

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the 
Borough for a month or longer.

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) - 
(a) the landlord is the Council: and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial 
interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where -
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the 
area of the Borough; and
(b) either –
(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class.

Personal Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of the authority where it relates to or is likely to affect - 
(a) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are 

appointed or nominated by your authority;
(b)  any body -

(i) exercising functions of a public nature;
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union), 
of which you are in a position of general control or management;
(c) the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25.

Prejudicial Interests
Where you have a personal interest you also have a prejudicial interest in that business where the 
interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably 
regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest and where 
that business -
(a) Affects your financial position or the financial position of a person or body described above; or
 (b) Relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation 

to you or any person or body described above.

MEMBERS ARE ADVISED TO REFER TO THE FULL DESCRIPTIONS CONTAINED IN THE
COUNCIL’S CODE OF CONDUCT ADOPTED ON 25TH JULY 2012.

Page 5



PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Tuesday, 29th November 2016

PRESENT:  Councillor Blundell (Chair); Councillors Butterworth, Clegg, Dearnley, 
Emsley, Davidson, Hartley, Kelly, Mir, Paolucci-Escobar and Stott.

OFFICERS: J Groves (Economy Directorate), D Bowler, Y Pickering 
(Neighbourhoods Directorate), J Taylor (Children’s Directorate), J Murphy, S Shahid 
and T Knight (Resources Directorate).

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:  20 members of the public.

APOLOGIES: Councillor Aftab Hussain.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
35 There were no declarations of interest. 

OPEN FORUM
36 The following matters were considered with the Open Forum:-

(a) Floods in Milnrow.

Local residents and business owners expressed concerns regarding the recent 
floods in the area and sought clarification regarding the long term plans to alleviate 
the flooding. Members discussed the issues and confirmed that the Council were 
working collaboratively with the relevant Council departments and external agencies 
to identify and deal with the issues. 

(b) Milnrow Clock. 

Mr D Hannant sought clarification regarding when the Milnrow Clock would be 
repaired.  Councillor Kelly provided an update and agreed to keep residents 
informed. 

(c) The Greater Manchester Spatial Strategy Framework consultation.

Residents voiced several concerns over the plans including: the loss of countryside, 
the break-up of farmland and the lack of information.  Residents sought clarification 
regarding how urgent issues such as: flood prevention, building hospitals, addressing 
traffic congestion and creating more school places would be prioritised, resourced 
and addressed. The Chief Planning Officer outlined the consultation process and 
emphasised that the plans had been published for consultation.   It was reported that 
further stakeholder engagement had been planned and the consultation process 
would consider all responses.  Residents were informed that a drop in event (for 
information and advice) had also been arranged on 8th December at Milnrow Cricket 
Club, Harbour Lane, Rochdale - 3.30pm – 6.30pm.  Residents were urged to register 
their comments via the official channels and advised that further information could be 
obtained from the Rochdale Council website. 

(d) Greater Manchester Police Update.

Police Inspector Howarth provided an update in relation to the Greater Manchester 
Police (GMP) activity in the Pennines Township.  Members were advised that crime 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



had significantly reduced overall with a small increase within the Smallbridge and 
Firgrove areas.  A slight increase in crime rates was expected following improvement 
to the reporting of crime.  It was reported that premises housing Littleborough Police 
Station had been sold and plans to co-locate with Littleborough Fire Station were 
underway. 

Members sought clarification regarding the number of PC’s deployed across the 
Pennines area.   Councillor Paolucci-Escobar sought clarification regarding the 
measures in place to address the health and wellbeing of Police staff.  It was 
reported that that 1.5 PCSO’s had been deployed in the area.  Members were 
reassured that the neighbourhood team would continue to respond to issues 
appropriately and resources would be deployed accordingly.  Members were advised 
that the health and wellbeing of staff would continue to be managed via an 
organisational health and wellbeing policy, open communication and dialogue as well 
as staff 1:1’s

Members of the Committee thanked Police Inspector Howarth for the update.  GMP 
was praised for their efforts and for the way they had worked jointly with the 
Community Safety Officer. 

PRESENTATION - GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL STRATEGY 
FRAMEWORK
37 The Chief Planning Officer delivered a presentation in relation to The Greater 
Manchester Spatial Strategy Framework (Draft for consultation).  The presentation 
detailed the vision, key objectives and the proposals for the Rochdale Borough. 
Members discussed the potential benefits to the Borough and sought clarification 
regarding how the proposals would address local issues such as: climate change, 
flooding, congestion on local roads and air quality (which had worsened since the 
advent of the strategy).   It was reported that the purpose of the consultation was to 
determine whether the infrastructure could allow for the planned development 
growth.  The Committee were requested to encourage residents and other 
stakeholders within the Township to provide comments on the proposals by the end 
of the consultation process which was 23rd December 2016.

DECIDED – that the presentation be noted.

Eligible for call in – no.

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PENNINES TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE HELD 
ON 20TH SEPTEMBER 2016
38 DECIDED –That the Minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township 
Committee held 20th September 2016 be approved as a correct record. 

PENNINES TOWNSHIP DELEGATED AND FUNDING SUB COMMITTEE
39 DECIDED –That the Minutes of the meeting of the Pennines Township 
Delegated and Funding Sub-Committee held 5th October 2016 be noted. 

TOWNSHIP HIGHWAYS CHAMPION REPORT
40 The Township Highways Champion, Councillor Ann Stott JP, provided an 
update regarding the following key issues which were discussed at the second 
Highways Champion meeting on 7th November 2016:-

 The NSL Contract
 Highways and Budget Performance Monitoring

Page 7



 BBLP contract efficiencies
 Winter service
 NHT customer satisfaction survey
 Communications
 Department for Transport self-assessments

It was reported that the next Highways Champion meeting would be held on 12th 
December 2016.  Members were invited to submit any questions/agenda items for 
the next meeting. The Township Committee agreed to receive regular updates in 
relation to the Highways Champion meetings at future meetings of the Township 
Committee.  

DECIDED – that (1) the update be noted.
(2) further updates from the Highways Champion meetings be provided 

at future meetings of the Townships Committee. 

Eligible for call in: no.

PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY
41 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of 
Neighbourhoods which informed Members of the draft Playing Pitch Strategy. The 
purpose of the report was to consult with Township Committees on the draft Playing 
Pitch Strategy and provide details of the consultation process.  The Committee was 
asked to note the report and support the Playing Pitch Strategy.  Members were 
requested to encourage residents and other stakeholders within the Township to 
provide comments on the Playing Pitch Strategy before 31st December 2016. 

The Committee were advised that the strategy covered all the main pitch sports – 
football, hockey, lacrosse, rounders, rugby league and rugby union. The Borough-
wide strategy looked at pitches in council ownership, on school sites, owned by 
sports clubs and other providers.  In total over 300 pitches had been reviewed and 
assessed and the consultation had included more than 500 playing teams, education 
establishments, leagues and governing bodies. 

The recommendations in the report were presented as a draft strategy had been 
produced in accordance with the Sport England Playing Pitch Strategy Guidance. 
The aim of the strategy was to make sure that there was an adequate supply of good 
quality, accessible grass and artificial pitches in the borough to meet current and 
future demands for formal pitch sports.

The strategy was set in the context of the council’s corporate plans and outlined how 
the Playing Pitch Strategy could help deliver the corporate objectives. It also took into 
account the changing national picture and priorities for sports and physical activity.

Alternatives considered: none.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted.
(2) the Play Pitch Strategy be supported.

Eligible for call-in: no.

PROPOSED REMOVAL OF BT PAYPHONE BOX
42 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy which 
informed Members of the receipt of a letter from BT confirming its intention to remove 

Page 8



a total of 27 payphones boxes across the Borough as listed in the appendix to the 
report.  The purpose of the report was to seek Township views on these proposals 
which would be forwarded to BT, together with any public views received by the 
Council before the consultation expiry date.

The Committee was informed that BT had undertaken its own form of public 
consultation by display of a site notice. The Notice invited comments to be submitted 
in writing to the Local Planning Authority. The Council had a period of 90 days from 
notification by BT to provide it’s, and the views of the public.  No public comment had 
been received at the time of writing and Member views were invited.

The recommendations in the report were presented for Township Committee for 
Members information and comments.  

Members discussed the proposal and requested that feedback from the consultation 
be provided at a future meeting of the Township Committee.  

DECIDED – that (1)  the report be noted.
(2) feedback from the consultation be provided at a future meeting of the 

Township Committee. 

Eligible for call-in: no.

PROPOSED DISCRETIONARY FEES & CHARGES 2017/18
43 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources which 
presented the proposed discretionary fee and charge levels 2017/18 for the: 
Resources Directorate, Adult Care Services, Early Help and Schools Services, Public 
Health Protection Services, Planning and Building Control Services and 
Neighbourhood Services. The purpose of the report was to seek comments thereon 
as part of the public consultation process.

The recommendations were put forward as The Authority carried out an annual 
review of discretionary fees and charges as part of the budget setting process. For 
the 2017/18 financial year, Cabinet had agreed an increase of 5.0%, wherever 
possible to ensure that the Authority could set a balanced budget for the forthcoming 
year (2017/18).

Alternatives considered: none, as the Council needed to consider fees and charges 
as part of the process to ensure that the Authority set a balanced budget for 2017/18.

DECIDED – That (1) the report be noted. 
(2) the proposed changes to discretionary fee and charge levels for the: 

Resources Directorate, Adult Care Services, Early Help and Schools Services, 
Public Protection Services, Planning and Building Control Services and 
Neighbourhood Services for 2017/18 be noted.

Eligible for call-in:  no. 

SAVINGS PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND 2018/19 - GROUP 2 SAVINGS 
PROPOSALS
44 The Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources which 
informed the Township Committee of the Group 2 saving proposals for 2017/18 and 
2018/19 service delivery implications and to seek comments thereon as part of the 
public consultation process. Based on current assumptions the Council was required 

Page 9



to make savings of £38.8m over the next two financial years to set a balanced 
budget. 

Members were informed that a consultation process on Group 2 of savings proposals 
would be undertaken with the public, stakeholder groups, staff, unions and service 
users as appropriate. It was reported that the consultation process for Group 2 of the 
savings proposals would commence on 24th November 2016 and would conclude on 
9th January 2017.

DECIDED – That the report be noted

Eligible for call-in:  no.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2017/18 TO 2019/20
45 The Township Committee considered a report of the Director of Resources 
which presented the 2017/18 to 2019/20 Capital Programme, as shown in Appendix 
1. The purpose of the report was to seek comments as part of the budget setting 
process. 

The recommendation were put forward as Cabinet considered the proposed Capital 
Programme for 2017/18 and provisional programme for 2018/19 and 2019/20 on 3rd 
October 2016, and approved it as a basis for consultation.  To consider the proposals 
in this report regarding the 2017/18 Capital Programme as part of the process of 
consultation

Alternatives considered: none, as the Council is legally obliged to set a balanced 
budget. The budget setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned 
way. Budgets are prepared in accordance with the approved guidelines. 

DECIDED – That the report be noted.

Eligible for call-in: no. 

SMITHY BRIDGE ROAD AND EAFIELD ROAD, LITTLEBOROUGH - OBJECTION 
TO TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER
46 The Director of Neighbourhoods introduced a report which detailed the 
responses to objections and comments received to the proposed introduction of 
prohibition of waiting restrictions on Smithy Bridge Road and Eafield Road, 
Littleborough, in Littleborough Lakeside Ward.

The Township Committee were asked to considers whether to implement the 
proposed Traffic Regulation Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of 
Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008) 
(Amendment) (No.55) order; not to implement the proposed Order; or, provide 
alternative proposals. 

The Township Committee was advised that the proposed Order was deemed
strategic in nature and had to be dealt with in accordance with Section F2 of the
Scheme of Delegation to Township Committees. Members were advised that the 
Township Committee had delegated power to confirm the proposals and the Order. 
However, if the Committee wished not to confirm the proposals and the Order, the 
matter would be referred to Cabinet for decision.

DECIDED – That (1) the Traffic Regulation Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil 
Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various Streets) (Pennines Township) 

Page 10



Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.55), as detailed within the submitted report be 
deferred to the next meeting of the Pennines Township Committee pending 
consultation between Ward Councillors and Residents.

Eligible for call-in: yes. 

Page 11



Title: Smithy Bridge Road and Eafield 
Road, Littleborough - Objection to Traffic 
Regulation Order

Public/Private: For Publication

Report to: Pennines Township Committee

Cabinet Member: Cabinet Member for Housing 
and Environment

Report Author: Steve Reay

Date: 10th January 2017 
Director:    Director of Neighbourhoods

Tel: Tel: 01706 924461  

Author Email:    steve.reay@rochdale.gov.uk Key Decision:

1 Purpose of the report

1.1 This report is for Members to reconsider objections received to the proposed 
introduction of prohibition of waiting restrictions on Smithy Bridge Road and Eafield 
Road, Littleborough, in Littleborough Lakeside Ward. At the meeting held on 29th 
November 2016, it was decided that the report be deferred to the next meeting 
following consultation between Ward Councillors and Residents.

2 Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee considers whether the proposed Traffic 
Regulation Order, Borough of Rochdale ((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008) (Amendment) (No.55) Order be 
implemented in light of the representations received which are outlined in Section 7 of 
this report. 

3 Reason for Recommendation

3.1 To comply with the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, Regulations 1996 the 
Authority must consider all objections submitted during the consultation period of at 
least 21 days (see Section 7) before ‘Making’ a Traffic Regulation Order.

3.2 The Committee should consider the objections received and make a decision as to 
whether the scheme should be progressed and the new restrictions introduced.

3.3 It should be noted that in considering the report, the proposed Order is deemed 
strategic in nature and should be dealt with in accordance with Section F2 of the 
Scheme of Delegation to Township Committee. Committee has delegated power to 
confirm the proposals and the Order. However, if the Committee wish not to confirm 
the proposals and the Order, the matter must be referred to Cabinet for decision.

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



4 Alternatives Considered

4.1 Consider recommending to Cabinet that the proposal be abandoned

4.1.1 The proposal to make a Traffic Regulation Order affecting parts of Smithy Bridge 
Road and Eafield Road has been developed for and commissioned by Pennines 
Township Committee.

4.1.2 Should Committee decide not to introduce the restrictions proposed then issues 
of junction visibility will not be addressed.

4.1.3 It should be noted that this Traffic Regulation Order is proposed as a 
consequence of indiscriminate parking along the lengths of roads concerned affecting 
visibility and access issues. To address the issues it is necessary to introduce the 
proposed Order as originally advertised (see Appendix A).

5 Consultation Undertaken

5.1 Consultation required by the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders, Regulations 1996 
has taken place.

5.2 The Emergency Services, Transport for Greater Manchester, the Freight
Transport Association and the Road Haulage Association were consulted on
12th July 2016.

5.3 Notices of intention were posted on site and published in the local newspaper on 
13th July 2016.

5.4 The objection period ran until 10th August 2016.

5.5 Consultation between Ward Councillors and residents following the committee 
meeting held on 29th November.

6 Background:

6.1 Statement of Reasons

6.1.1 Concerns were raised by a local resident to a ward councillor that sight lines 
were being obstructed when exiting Eafield Road onto Smithy Bridge Road due to 
vehicles parking too close to the junction.

6.1.2 Eafield Road is a small residential lane that is accessed from Smithy Bridge 
Road. Smithy Bridge Road is an unclassified road, however, it is traffic sensitive a bus 
route and a popular link between Littleborough and Milnrow as well as being a main 
route to Hollingworth Lake.

6.1.3 There is a level crossing on Smithy Bridge Road approximately 150 metres from 
its junction with Eafield Road.

6.1.4 The proposed restrictions will prohibit vehicles from parking at any time on 
Smithy Bridge Road to the north west of Eafield Road for a distance of 15 metres and 
up to the junction of Fletcher’s Road on the south east side, and on Eafield Road for a 
distance of 10 metres from the junction of Smithy Bridge Road.

6.1.5 This will protect sight lines when accessing and egressing Eafield Road and 
improve safety for both motorists and pedestrians. 

Page 13



6.2 The Notice of Intention and associated plan illustrate the proposal at Appendix A 
of this report.

7 Report

7.1 During the consultation period the Authority received four objections.

7.2 The Objectors’ comments and the Director of Neighbourhoods response
are attached at Appendix B of this report.

7.3 In considering the objections the Committee should be mindful that the only right 
the general public has on the highway is a right of passage along it. The Authority has 
both a duty of care to ensure the safety of the travelling public and a duty under the 
Traffic Management Act 2004 to maintain the expeditious movement of traffic.

7.4 Rules 242 and 243 of the Highway Code state that motorists should not cause 
an unnecessary obstruction of the road or park opposite or within 10 metres of a 
junction.

8  Legal Implications

8.1 The Council has a statutory duty to ensure that its highways operate safely and
efficiently, for all traffic including pedestrians.

9 Financial Implications

9.1 The proposed Traffic Regulation Order is a Pennines Township Revenue Scheme,
and is therefore funded from Township Funds. The estimated cost is £3500.

10 Personnel Implications

10.1 This scheme has no implications.

11 Corporate Priorities

11.1 The proposed scheme is generated by Pennines Township Committee.

12 Risk Assessment Implications 

12.1 There are no risk assessment implications.

13 Equalities Impacts

13.1 Workforce Equality Impacts Assessment

There are no workforce equality issues arising from this report.

Page 14



13.2 Equality/Community Impact Assessments

A detailed Equality Impact assessment is attached as an Appendix to this report.

Background Papers
Document Place of Inspection

Page 15



APPENDIX  A – Notice of Intention and plan

BOROUGH OF ROCHDALE
((CIVIL ENFORCEMENT OF TRAFFIC CONTRAVENTIONS)

(VARIOUS STREETS) (PENNINES TOWNSHIP) ORDER 2008)
(AMENDMENT) (NO. 55) ORDER

Smithy Bridge Road and Eafield Road, Littleborough

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Rochdale Borough Council, in exercise of its powers under 
Sections 1(1), 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, intend to make an Order, the effect 
of which would be to:-

(i) Amend the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Various 
Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008 by inserting the following:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Smithy Bridge Road, Littleborough Lakeside Ward

n(xv) the south west side from its junction with Fletcher’s Road to a point 15 metres north west of 
its junction with Eafield Road

Eafield Road, Littleborough Lakeside Ward

n(i) both sides from its junction with Smithy Bridge Road for a distance of 10 metres in a south 
westerly direction  

(ii) Revoke that part of the Borough of Rochdale (Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) 
(Various Streets) (Pennines Township) Order 2008, as follows:-

Schedule No. 1.1
No Waiting At Any Time

Smithy Bridge Road, Littleborough Lakeside Ward

(iii) the west side from a point 29 metres south-east of its junction with Eafield Road to its 
junction with Fletcher’s Road.

A copy of the proposed Order and a map showing the lengths of roads concerned, together with the 
Council’s Statement of Reasons for making the Order, may be inspected at Littleborough Library, 
Hare Hill Park, Hare Hill Road, Littleborough, OL15 9HE during normal office hours.

Objections to the proposed Order, stating the grounds on which they are made, must be made in 
writing and forwarded to trafficorders@rochdale.gov.uk or, alternatively, to Network Management, 
Floor 2, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, Rochdale, OL16 1XU to reach the Council on or before 
10th August 2016, quoting H60/1179.

Dated this 13th day of July 2016

David Wilcock
Assistant Director – Legal, Governance & Workforce

Rochdale Borough Council
Number One Riverside
Smith Street
ROCHDALE
OL16 1XU

Page 16



Page 17



APPENDIX B – Objections Received 

Objector 1                 . Residential occupier Eafield Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy & 
Environment

Dear Sirs

RE Traffic Regulation Order H60/1179 Smithy 
Bridge & Eafield Rd 

I write further to this consultation regarding the 
above traffic order. Other than the residents 
immediately living on Smithy Bridge Road I am the 
closest resident to your proposals and have not 
noticed the letter wrapped around the lamp post 
without any weather protection. This has just 
been pointed out to me by a neighbour 45 
minutes ago.

I feel you have failed in your duty to properly 
consult the residents on your proposals, a written 
letter to the local residents immediately affected 
would be acceptable, a piece of paper on a 
lamppost is not. For this reason I request that you 
extend your deadline for response by a minimum 
of 2 weeks. Please note I reserve my position to 
fully consider and comment further.

Whilst I understand the reason behind your 
proposals I write to object to them as they stand I 
believe that your proposed yellow lining is 
excessive, I would suggest that if any yellow lining 
has to be done on Eafield Rd this is kept to no 
more than 2m. 

Other than HGVs please can you tell me what 
road vehicle is 10m long, 2m is plenty enough to 
view Smithybridge Road, especially so if this has 
been yellow lined. 

In addition I would like to enquire as to the status 
of Eafield Road, is this a fully adopted road from 
the junction of Smithy Bridge Road to Yea Road.

Yours Sincerely

                . 

The Council followed the Local Authorities’ 
Traffic Orders, Regulations 1996 when 
advertising this proposal. There is no 
requirement to letter drop affected 
residents. This is standard procedure for 
all traffic orders advertised in the Borough 
of Rochdale.

Rule 243 of the Highway Code states that 
motorists should not park opposite or 
within 10 metres of a junction. 

The measurement does not refer to the 
length of a single vehicle.

The road is un-adopted. Traffic orders can 
be introduced on un-adopted roads.

Page 18



Objector 2 . Residential occupier of 
Smith Bridge Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy & 
Environment

Dear Sir/Madam

I am writing to express objection against 
proposed order, reference no. H60/1179.

The proposed restrictions would extend the 
full length of the front of my property and for 
10 metres down the side. Being able to park 
near our own house is already a considerable 
problem without the proposed restrictions.  I 
assumed this was owing to rail commuters 
using nearby Smithy Bridge station but 
neighbours who have lived on the street far 
longer than ourselves, tell us the problem has 
increased significantly since the recent 
extension of Cleland Curtain factory.

Myself and my husband work and rely on 
grandparents being able to park near to our 
house to care for our children and take them 
to and from school, double yellow lines would 
make it impossible for them to secure a 
parking spot near to our house. As your 
reason of intent states, Smithy Bridge Road is 
an unclassified road and it seems a little 
excessive to enforce an order that will have 
such a negative impact on our and our 
neighbours' daily lives simply because one 
resident has raised an issue with sight lines. If 
there was a significant problem, more people 
would have raised the issue.

I would politely ask that if the proposed order 
is approved, that the council might consider 
doing the affected residents the courtesy of 
properly marking white, singular, no parking 
lines across our driveways and garages as 
even without parking restrictions in place, 
unknown cars are often blocking our access!

Yours faithfully

,              .of Smithy Bridge Road

The only right the general public including 
residents have on the highway is a right of 
passage along it. The Council does not 
have a duty to create or maintain on-street 
parking for residents. Residents already 
have access to off-street parking places 
and un-restricted on-street parking areas 
are available nearby on Eafield Road and 
further along Smithy Bridge Road to the 
north-west. 
The number of complaints is not relevant 
for a scheme to be progressed. The 
scheme was approved by Pennines 
Township based on the complaint/s 
received.

At the present time the Council are not 
providing Access Protection Markings. It is 
an offence to obstruct an access or 
driveway with or without the marking.

Page 19



Objector 3                 . Residential occupier of Smithy Bridge Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy & 
Environment

To whom it may concern.

I hereby object to the above 
plans.

I understand at present that the issue of cars 
parking in front of mine and my neighbours 
houses causes issues. The vast majority of these 
are people are workers at Hollingworth Mill 
(Cleland McIver). 
However I do feel that the current laws could be 
enforced with regards to the bad parking at the 
entrance to Eafield Road and just past Topham’s 
Tavern where it is already illegal to park due to 
the double white lines.
please see highway code rules 240 – 244
Rule 240
“You MUST NOT stop or park on.....

a road marked with double white lines,.... 
except to pick up or set down passengers, or 
to load or unload goods”
Rule 243
DO NOT stop or park.....

 opposite or within 10 metres (32 feet) 
of a junction, except in an authorised parking 
space

 in front of an entrance to a property
 on a bend
 where you would obstruct cyclists’ use 

of cycle facilities except when forced to do so 
by stationary traffic.
Rule 244
You MUST NOT park partially or wholly on the 
pavement in London, and should not do so 
elsewhere unless signs permit it. Parking on 
the pavement can obstruct and seriously 
inconvenience pedestrians, people in 
wheelchairs or with visual impairments and 
people with prams or pushchairs.
Law GL(GP)A sect 15

Permit parking for residents nearby Hollingworth 
Lake were given to alleviate the issues for the 
residents there.

The Police are responsible for the 
enforcement of double white line 
systems.

It would not be feasible to introduce a 
residents parking scheme for so few 
residents. Residents also have off-street 

Page 20



As I feel this is a similar situation for myself and 
neighbours we should be extended the same 
scheme as a resolution?
Surely a president was set for the residents 
I have parked my car outside my house since 
moving in almost fifteen years ago without any 
issues but all has changed since the workforce at 
Hollingworth Mill seems to have increased 
considerably over the last few years and their 
parking does not cater for all its employees.

I understand that this plan would stop the parking 
but leave myself and neighbours the only losers 
for a problem which would be solved with the 
aforementioned resident permits.

                            .     
Smithybridge Road
Littleborough
Lancs.
OL15 8QF

parking facilities and would not qualify.

Objector 4 . Residential occupier of 
Smith Bridge Road

Details of objection
Objector’s comments written as received

Response of the Director of Economy & 
Environment

Good morning

I am writing on behalf of the addresses 
10, 12, 14 Smithy Bridge Road 
Littleborough.

We would like to register a strong 
objection to double yellow lines being 
painted in front of our houses.

We do not want Parking restrictions there. No comment (No reason given)

Page 21



We do however agree there are problems 
in our area and would request better 
signage on the corner in front of the 
factory as drivers seem to think it is legal 
to park on the corner.  When asked it 
appears they see the end of the double 
yellows and park there without looking at 
the white lines in the road.

We have all seen some terrifying near 
misses especially in the winter when the 
Christmas markets are on.  People park 
all over the place here. 

We look forward to your confirmation of 
receipt of this e-mail and feedback on this 
issue.

Best regards

Smithy Bridge Road, Littleborough, 
Lancashire OL15 8QF

The Police are responsible for the 
enforcement of double white line 
systems. Unfortunately, as there are no 
signs associated with this restriction, the 
Council would not be able to provide 
any. Motorists should be aware that you 
must not stop or park on a road marked 
with double white lines

Page 22



 
 

 

APPENDIX  

 

APPENDIX  

Equality Impact Assessment 

  

What are you assessing?  Please tick the appropriate box below. 

 

Function Strategy Policy Project Other, please specify below 

   Objections to a 

proposed Traffic 

Regulation Order 

 

 

 

Service: 

Economy & Environment 

Section:  

Network Management 

Responsible Officer: 

Andrew Cowell 01706 924592 

(andrew.cowell@rochdale.gov.uk) 

Name of function/strategy/ policy/ project assessed: 

Consideration of objections to a proposed Traffic Regulation 

Order at Eafield Road / Smithy Bridge Road. (Littleborough 

Lakeside Ward). 

Date of Assessment: 

28 September 2016 

Officers Involved: 

Andrew Cowell (andrew.cowell@rochdale.gov.uk) 

1.What is the purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project assessed? 

(Briefly describe the aims, objectives and purpose of the function/strategy/policy/project) 

The purpose of the proposed Traffic Regulation Order is to introduce no waiting at any time restrictions on 

Eafield Road and Smith Bridge Road to improve visibility and ease traffic movements at the junction. 

Page 23



 
 

 

2.Who are the key stakeholders? 

Pennines Township Committee who have commissioned the proposed Traffic Regulation Order. 

 

3. What is the scope of this equality impact assessment? That is, what is included in this 

assessment.   

The introduction of waiting restrictions at the junction of Eafield Road and Smithy Bridge Road 

4.Which needs is this function/strategy/ policy/ project designed to meet? 

To improve highway safety and meet the aspirations of Pennines Township Committee. 

5.Has a needs analysis been undertaken? 

No. 

6.Who is affected by this function/strategy/ policy/ project? 

Users of the highway and local residents 

7.Who has been involved in the review or development of this function/strategy/ policy/ project and 

who has been consulted?  State your consultation/involvement methodology. 

Pennines Township Committee as scheme promoter. 

Traffic Management Unit’s members as statutory consultees. 

The public in respect of the statutory process to advertise the traffic order proposal, some of whom have chosen to 

make the objections that are now under consideration. 

8.What data have you considered for this assessment and have any gaps in the data been identified.  

What action will be taken to close any data gaps? 

Have followed usual required process much of which is statutory to promote a Traffic Regulation Order. 

9.Are there any other documents or strategies which are linked to this assessment? If so, please 

include hyperlinks to these documents below, where available. 

None. 

 

10.What impact will this function/strategy/policy/project have on all the protected groups?  This 

includes both positive and potentially negative impacts. 

 

Page 24



 
 

 

Race Equality  

None. 

Disabled People 

None 
 

Carers 

See disabled people above. 

Gender 

None. 

Age 

None. 

Armed Forces and Ex-Armed Forces Personnel 

None. 

Sexual Orientation 

None. 

Gender Reassignment 

None. 

Religion or Belief 

None. 

Pregnant Women or Those on Maternity Leave 

None. 

Marriage or Civil Partnership 

None 

11.What are your main conclusions from this analysis? 

No specific impact on protected groups. 

12.What are your recommendations? 

To proceed with the introduction of the waiting restrictions. 

13.What actions are you going to take to address the findings of this assessment?  Please attach an 

Page 25



 
 

action plan including details of designated officers responsible for completing these actions. 

None. 

 

Signed (Completing Officer):  Andrew Cowell  Date: 28th Sept. 2016. 

 

Signed (Head of Service): _______________ Date: ____________ 

 

Page 26


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	Summary OF interests

	3 Minutes of the Meeting of the Pennines Township Committee held on 29th November 2016
	4 Smithy Bridge Road and Eafield Road, Littleborough - Objection to Traffic Regulation Order
	equality impact report for TRO


